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STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Management is responsible for preparing the separate financial statements of Ma San
Consumer Corporation (“the Company”) and the consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012 in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System and the relevant statutory
requirements. In preparing those financial statements, the Board of Management is required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
* make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Company or the Group will continue in business.

The Board of Management is also responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept
which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the separate financial position of the Company
and the consolidated financial position of the Group and to ensure that the accounting records comply
with the requirements of Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System and
the relevant statutory requirements. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities. \

The Board of Management confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing
these financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I, Nguyen Dang Quang, being the Chairman of the Board of Management and on behalf of the Board of
Management, do hereby approve the accompanying financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the separate financial position of the Company
as of 31 December 2012 and of the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System and
the relevant statutory requirements.

/’05069116&13 of the Board of Management

Chairman
Ho Chi Minh City, 29 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders
Ma San Consumer Corporation

Scope

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ma San Consumer Corporation (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group™) which comprise the separate and
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2012 and the related separate and consolidated
statements of income and cash flows for the year then ended and the explanatory notes thereto which
were authorised for issue by the Company’s management on 29 March 2013, as set out on pages 4 to
70. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant cstimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Audit opinion

in our opinion, the separate financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group give a true and fair view of the separate and consolidated financial positions of
the Company and the Group, respectively, as of 31 December 2012 and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System and the relevant statutory requirements.

KPMG Limited

Vietnam

Investment Certificate No: 011043000345
Audit Report No: 12-01-385
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}bﬁ ih Nghi Chong Kwang Pinay
Q 4/KTV CPA Ng. N0864/KTV
eneral Director

Ho Chi Minh City, 29 March 2013

KPMG Limited, a Vietnamese limited liability company and a member
firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Cooperative (KPMG International”),

a Swiss entity. '



Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Balance sheets as at 31 December 2012

Group
Code Note  31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000
ASSETS
Current assets
(100 =110+ 120 + 130 + 140 + 150) 100 6,125,830,321 8,948,743,518
Cash and cash equivalents 110 o6 3,383,585,011 4,730,726,781
Cash 111 68,852,030 54,302,350
Cash equivalents 112 3,314,732,981 4,676,424,431
Short-term investments 120 12 1,772,500,000 802,000,000
Short-term investments 121 1,772,500,000 802,000,000
Accounts receivable — short-term 130 7 375,303,069 2,631,739,221
Accounts receivable - trade 131 121,299,838 193,615,217
Prepayments to suppliers 132 100,853,227 150,475,986
Other receivables 135 153,527,772 2,288,731,834
Allowance for doubtful debts 139 (377,768) (1,083,816)
Inventories 140 8 563,855,229 612,846,021
Inventories 141 575,846,111 625,746,995
Allowance for inventories 149 (11,990,882)  (12,900,974)
Other current assets 150 30,587,012 171,431,495
Short-term prepayments 151 12,754,718 121,495,495
Deductible value added tax 152 12,108,407 7,185,243
Taxes and other receivables from
State Treasury 154 - 103,456
Other current assets 158 5,723,887 42,647,301

Form B 01 - DN

Company
317122012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000
6,576,859,263 5,349,869,072
871,211,108 1,548,283,789
17,711,108 19,083,789
853,500,000 1,529,200,000
1,413,000,000 326,200,000
1,413,000,000 326,200,000
4,240,892,060 3,417,811,930
84,796,634 81,401,597
854,725 1,500,495
4,155,240,701 3,335,734,675
. (824,837)
37,042,904 53,063,518
37,438,367 53,816,808
(395,463) (753,290)
14,713,191 4,509,835
3,019,439 2,697,854
8,577,312 879,173
3,116,440 932,808

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Balance sheets as at 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 01 - DN

Group Company
Code Note 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND?000 VND?000 VND’000 VND’000
Long-term assets

(200 =210+ 220 + 250 + 260) 200 11,141,536,434 4,981,001,774 7,830,164,548 4,054,265,668
Accounts receivable — long-term 210 7  5,470,161,109 2,260,161,506 5,461,835,331 2,260,161,506
Other long-term receivables 218 5,470,161,109  2,260,161,506 5,461,835,331 2,260,161,506
Fixed assets 220 3,027,005,061 2,400,169,199 16,284,075 20,155,881
Tangible fixed assets 221 9 1,497,779,704 843,328,398 12,822,415 14,826,225
Cost 222 1,970,801,774 1,154,903,244 41,242,174 36,056,123
Accumulated depreciation 223 (473,022,070) (311,574,846)  (28,419,759) (21,229,898)
Intangible fixed assets 227 10 857,364,745 979,651,844 2,736,857 4,370,190
Cost 228 1,018,998,953 1,016,690,758 10,106,371 9,530,677
Accumulated amortisation 229 (161,634,208)  (37,038,914) (7,369,514) (5,160,487)
Construction in progress 230 11 671,860,612 577,188,957 724,803 959,466
Long-term investments 250 12 2,332,887,118 - 2,322,673,387 1,766,118,935
Investments in subsidiaries 251 - - 2,088,173,387 1,766,118,935
Investments in associates 252 1,967,387,118 - - -
Other long-term investments 258 365,500,000 - 234,500,000 .
Other long-term assets 260 311,483,146 320,671,069 29,371,755 7,829,346
Long-term prepayments 261 14 18,914,285 6,374,473 341,919 142,493
Deferred tax assets 262 15 36,034,944 24,797,831 21,169,094 -
Other long-term assets 268 7,901,742 12,393,773 7,860,742 7,686,853
Goodwill 269 16 248,632,175 277,104,992 = 2
TOTAL ASSETS (270 =100+ 200) 270 17,267,366,755 13,929,745,292 14,407,023,811 9,404,134,740

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Balance sheets as at 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 01 - DN
Group Company
Code Note 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
RESOURCES
LIABILITIES (300=310+330) 300 5,858,041,705 5,190,408,823 3,482,835,683 1,264,064,866
Current liabilities 310 3,212,419,012 2,380,764,431 3,468,252,717 1,155,587,205
Short-term borrowings and
liabilities 311 17 1,683,446,854 1,402,397,570 758,686,221 689,769,290
Accounts payable — trade 312 18 505,190,383 360,346,998 2,317,038,316 308,277,667
Advances from customers 313 14,490,437 7,993,844 9,559,959 5,211,677
Taxes payable to State Treasury 314 19 560,603,580 218,696,878 276,248,369 27,591,202
Payables to employees 315 11,965,824 5,810,189 10,825 38,423
Accrued expenses 316 20 394,648,118 356,982,285 106,541,318 124,245,773
Other short-term payables 319 21 31,349,049 24,598,656 167,709 453.173
Bonus and welfare funds 323 10,724,767 3,938,011 - -
Long-term borrowing and
liabilities 330 2,645,622,693 2,809,644,392 14,582,966 108,477,661
Other long-term liabilities 333 22 14,582,966 3,965,976 14,582,966 3,965,976
Long-term borrowings and
liabilities 334 23 2,521,943,420 2,576,057,093 - E
Deferred tax liabilities 335 15 109,096,307 222,437,992 - 102,844,604
Provision for severance allowance 337 24 - 7,183,331 - 1,667,081
EQUITY (400 = 410) 400 10,604,651,131 7,937,093,334 10,924,188,128 8,140,069,874
Owners’ equity 410 25 10,604,651,131 7,937,093,334 10,924,188,128 8,140,069,874
Share capital 411 26 5,025,000,000 2,500,000,000 5,025,000,000 2,500,000,000
Capital surplus 412 26 3,111,514,809 3,111,514,809 3,111,514,809 3,111,514,809
Other reserves 413 (283,274,277)  (191,690,689) - -
Investment development funds 414 18,324,741 - - s
Financial reserve funds 415 4,407,232 - - -
Retained profits 420 2,728,678,626  2,517,269,214 2,787,673,319 2,528,555,065
MINORITY INTERESTS 439 25 804,673,919 802,243,135 - -
TOLAEBEMIURCES 440 17,267,366,755 13,929,745,292 14,407,023,811 9,404,134,740

(440 = 300 + 400 + 439)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Balance sheets as at 31 December 2012 (continued)

OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Group
31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Foreign currencies:
= USD 101,103,070 100,776,208
= EUR 4,947 1,284,391

Form B 01 - DN

Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011

298,054 196,738
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Chief Financial Officer b

29 March 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Statements of income for the year ended 31 December 2012

Form B 02 - DN

Group Company
Code Note 2012 2011 2012 2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VYND’000
Total revenue 01 27 10,575.249,545 7,239,003,024 8,774,604,739 7,168,373,902
Less revenue deductions 02 27 185,834,895 182,154,352 157,750,176 182,127,314
Net revenue (10 =01 - 02) 10 27 10,389,414,650 7,056,848,672 8,616,854,563 6,986,246,588
Cost of sales 11 28 6,178,925,703 3,997,833,772 8,162,283,768 6,630,519,305
Gross profit (20=10-11) 20 4,210,488,947 3,059,014,900 454,570,795 355,727,283
Financial income 21 29 1,332,727,670 1,006,185,078 3,600,210,740 2,753,898,225
Financial expenses 22 30 531,991,410 281,036,864 468,239,280 187,803,322
In which: Interest expense 23 487,983,049 250,018,940 467,139,917 187,452,611
Selling expenses 24 1,325,121,188 1,010,148,574 544,215,114 445,048,195
General and administration
expenses 25 394,642,867 186,273,375 121,170,357 96,116,932
Net operaling prolit
(30 =20 + (21 - 22) - (24 + 25)} 30 3,291,461,152 2,587,741,165 2,921,156,784 2,380,657,059
Other income 31 31 52,209,252 19,511,120 2,725,898 213,629
Other expenses 32 32 26,637,369 23,308,565 64,654 2,746,701
Results of other activities
(40 = 31 - 32) 40 25,571,883 (3,797,445) 2,661,244 (2,533,072)
Share of profit in associate 41 2,555,287 - - -
Profit before tax
(50 = 30 + 40 + 41) 50 3,319,588,322 2,583,943,720 2,923,818,028 2,378,123,987
Income tax expense — current 51 33 593,858,061 204,280,677 273,388,070 20,353,260
f]';;:r‘“r: d‘“" (benefit)expense — 55 33 (194,578,798) 125,450,924 (124,013,698) 125,939,831
Net profit after tax(carried
forward to next page) 60 2,850,309,059 2,254,212,119 2,774,443,656 2,231,830,896

(60 =50 - 51 - 52)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Statements of income for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 02 — DN

Group Company
Code Note 2012 2011 2012 2011

VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000

Net profit after tax
(brought forward from 60 2,850,309,05% 2,254,212,119  2,774,443,656 2,231,830,896
previous page)

Attributable to:

Minority interests 61 86,162,000 792,206 - -
Equity shareholders of the
Company 62 2,764,147,059 2253,419,913  2,774,443,656 2,231,830,896

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (as

] 70 36 5,509 4,674 5,530 4,629
restated)

Prepared by: 73020 "’\r;

A .

/’ o;\/)/ ?r\ N G TY\ h
[=[ COPHAN \L
|| HANG TIEU DUNG |

7
/

7

fomc

Pham Dinh Toai < HO & AR
Chief Financial Officer i ve Officer

29 March 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries

Statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2012 (Indirect method)

Form B 03 - DN
Group Company
Code Note 2012 2011 2012 2011
VND’000 VIND?000 VND’000 VND’000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 01 3,319,588,322 2,583,943,720 2,923,818,028  2,378,123,987
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 02 329,062,086 136,750,607 10,018,313 9,856,134
Allowances and provisions 03 40,921,593 86,341,534 1,319,671 1,437,637
Unrealised foreign exchange
gains 04 (204,365) 1,642,433 - -
Loss/(gain) on disposals of
fixed assets 05 4,908,672 4,968,036 (76,550) (41,864)
Interest income and dividend
income 05 (1,315,179,423) (994,367,523) (3,598,736,434) (2,752,683,990)
Interest expense 06 487,983,049 250,018,940 467,139,917 187,452,611
Share of profit in an associate 07 (2,555,287) - - -
Opctaing profufiosg) Nefiee 0 2,864,524,647  2,069,297,747  (196,517,055)  (175,855,485)
changes in working capital
Changg in receivables and
other assets 09 112,185,501 120,370,049 (14,087,779) 128,336,983
Change in inventories 10 8,195,519 (173,350,509) 14,700,943 9,479,211
Change in payables and other
liabilities 11 65,503,708 (64,408,161)  2,063,045,566 254,459,261
Change in prepayments 12 9,649,163 - (462,986) -
3,060,058,538 1,951,909,126 1,866,678,689 216,419,970
Interest paid 13 (349,394,940) (177,919,702) (107,382,192) (55,929,068)
Corporate income tax paid 14 (212,074,304) (148,611,055) (13,973,366) (33,065,588)
Other payments for operating
activities 16 (19,282,821) (11,478,7806) (2,026,709) -
Net cash flows from 20 2,479,306,473  1,613,899,583  1,743,296,422 127,425,314

operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Indirect method - continued)

Code Note

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Payments for additions to
fixed assets and other long-
term assets
Proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets
Loans provided to related
companies
Collections on loans to
related companies
Placement of term deposits to
banks
Withdrawal of term deposits
Payments for investments in
subsidiaries
Acquisition of non-
controlling interest in a
subsidiary
Receipts of interest and
dividends
Acquisition of a subsidiary,
net of cash acquired

Net cash flows from investing
activities

21

22

23

24

24
24

25

25 5

27

30

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from equity issued

Proceeds from short-term and

long-term borrowings
Payments to settle loan
principals

Payments of dividends

Net cash flows from financing
activities

31

33

34
36

40

Group
2012 2011
VND’000 VND?’000

(861,222,393) (558,264,950)

2,023,051 2,406,498
- (4,715,000,000)

- 715,000,000
(32,652,669,566) (46,457,051,914)

31,316,669,566

46,145,051,914

Form B 03 - DN

Company
2012

VND’000

2011
VND’000

(6,215,877) (7,838,787)

87,895 53,303

- (4,715,000,000)

715,000,000

(10,130,300,000) (32,613,223,672)

8,809,000,000 32,777,023,672

(322,054,452) (1,087,096,075)

(122,044,452) - ; ]
293,351,760 486,079,545  1,175,696,400 436,637,302
63,998  (808,827,785) : ]

(2,023,828,036)  (5,190,606,692)  (473,786,034) (4,494,444,257)
12,500,000  3,273,195,109 12,500,000  3,273,195,109

3,251,205,012

(5,037,517,428)
(25,988,156)

4,565,862,172

(1,851,882,274)

1,248,308,995 900,196,056

(3,207,392,064)

(531,319,266)

(1,799,800,572)

5,987,175,007

(1,946,583,069) 3,642,071,899

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Indirect method - continued)

Group
Code Note 2012 2011
VND’000 VND’000

Net cash flows during the year 50 (1,344,322,135)  2,410,467,898
Cash and cash equivalents at

e Beginmng o thesyer 60 4,730,726,781 2,299,221,316
Effect of exchange rate

fluctuations on cash and cash 61 (2,819,635) 21,037,567

equivalents

Form B 03 - DN

Company
2012 2011

VND’000 VND’000

(677,072,681) (724,947,044)

1,548,283,789  2,273,230,833

Cash and cash equivalents at

thie end of the year 70 5 3,383,585,011 4,730,726,781

871,211,108  1,548,283,789

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Group
2012 2011

VYND'000 VND'000

Dividends paid/declared by subsidiaries and

settled by extinguishing payables to

subsidiaries - -
Facility fee paid by setting off against

deposit interest income receivables from a

subsidiary - 2
Loan transaction cost deducted against loan

proceeds - 164,944,000
Dividends paid in the form of shares issued 2,512,500,000 1,029,411,760

Company
2012 2011

VND'000 VND'000

419,701,208 785,175,176

10,616,990 -

2,512,500,000  1,029,411,760

Prepared-by: /

= )

/= COPHAN

!\*'\ HANG TIEU D(Ng

\2\ M/

/ﬁrf{(‘/ fv? \
m Dinh Toai
Chief Financial Officer

29 March 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Form B 09 - DN

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

Reporting entity

Ma San Consumer Corporation (“the Company™) is a joint stock company incorporated in Vietnam.
The principal activities of the Company are to trade in machines; motor vehicles, spare parts, materials,
household appliances, computers; office equipment, food products, and agricultural, forest and seafood
products; manufacturing and trade in non alcoholic drinks under Business Registration Certificate No
4103000082 issued by the Ministry of Planning and Investment (“MPI”) on 31 May 2000 and its
amendments (together referred to as “the Certificate”). The Certificate is valid for 46 years from the
initial Business Registration Certificate date.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group™).

The principal activities of the subsidiaries and associate are described as follows:

Percentage of equity
Name Principal activity owned and voting rights
31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Subsidiaries

Masan Food Company Limited Food Trading 100% 100%

Ma San Industrial One Member Company Limited Food sauce and instant 100% 100%

(formerly known as Masan Industrial Corporation) (*) noodle manufacturing

Viet Tien Food Technology One Member Company  Food sauce 100% 100%

Limited (formerly known as Viet Tien Food manufacturing

Technology Joint Stock Company) (*)

Minh Viet Packaging One Member Company Limited Packaging 100% 100%

(formerly known as Minh Viet Packaging Joint Stock

Company) (*)

Ma San PQ Corporation (*) Food sauce 94.5% 94.5%
manufacturing

Ma San HD One Member Company Limited (formerly Instant noodle 100% 100%

known as Ma San HD Joint Stock Company) (*) manufacturing

Vinacafe Bien Hoa Joint Stock Company (**) Beverage manufacturing 53.20% 50.25%

Hoa Muoi Gio Company Limited (***) Investment holdings 100% -

Associate

Vietnamese — French Cattle Feed Joint Stock Animal feed, poultry and 40% -

Company (*¥*¥) seafood manufacturing

(*) These subsidiaries are indirectly wholly owned by the Company through Masan Food Company
Limited.

13



(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
(**) From October to December 2012, the Company acquired further 2.95% equity interest in Vinacafe

Bien Hoa Joint Stock Company (“Vinacafe”) for a consideration of VND122,044,452,490 increasing
the Company’s equity interest in Vinacafe from 50.25% to 53.20%.

(***) Hoa Muoi Gio Company Limited (“Hoa Muoi Gio”) was established on 14 December 2010. Its
total legal and contributed capital was VND10,000,000.

On 1 October 2012, Hoa Muoi Gio acquired 40% equity interest in Vietnamese — French Cattle Feed
Joint Stock Company (“Proconco™) for a consideration of VND2,010,506,170,000 excluding
transactions costs. The interest in Proconco was earlier held by two funds named Prudential Vietnam
Assurance Private Limited and PCA International Funds SPC. The acquisition of Proconco was funded
by a loan amounting to VND2,028,000 million provided by the parent company, Ma San Group
Corporation, to Hoa Muoi Gio.

On 11 October 2012, the Company acquired 100% equity interest in Hoa Muoi Gio from Ma San Group
Corporation for a consideration of VND10 million. At the same time, the Company entered into an
agreement with the parent company whereby the loan mentioned above of VND2,028,000 million was
transferred to the Company, resulting in Hoa Muoi Gio, now a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, owing the loan to the Company.

At the reporting date, the above loan has been repaid by the Company to Ma San Group Corporation.
All the subsidiaries and associate are incorporated in Vietnam.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had 1,028 employees (31/12/2011: 819 employees) and the
Group had 5,249 employees (31/12/2011: 5,289 employees).

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System and the relevant statutory requirements.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements, except for the statement of cash flows, are prepared on the accrual basis using
the historical cost concept. The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method.

Annual accounting period

The annual accounting period of the Company is from 1 January to 31 December.

Accounting currency

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Vietnam Dong rounded to the nearest thousand
(“VND’000).



(a)
(i)

(i)

Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN

Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Company and the Group in the
preparation of these financial statements.

Basis of financial statement preparation

Accounting policy for business combinations under common control

Business combination where the same group of shareholders (“the Controlling Shareholders™) control
the combining companies before and after the business combination meets the definition of business
combination under common control because there is a continuation of the risks and benefits to the
Controlling Shareholders. Such common control business combination is specifically excluded from
the scope of Vietnamese Accounting Standard 11 Business Combination and in selecting its accounting
policy with respect to such transaction; the Group has considered Vietnamese Accounting Standard 01
Framework and Vietnamese Accounting Standard 21 Presentation of Financial Statements. Based on
these standards, the Group has adopted the merger (“carry-over”) basis of accounting. The assets and
liabilities of the combining companies are consolidated using the existing book values from the
Controlling Shareholders® perspective. Any difference between the cost of acquisition and net assets
acquired is treated as a deemed distribution to or contribution from shareholders and recorded directly

in equity.

The consolidated income statements, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated
cash flow statements include the results of operations of the combining companies as if the group
structure had been in existence from the Controlling Shareholders’ perspective throughout the entire
periods presented (or where the companies were incorporated at a date later than the beginning of the
earliest period presented, for the period from the date of incorporation to the end of the relevant
reporting periods).

Accounting policy for business combinations for non-common control entities

Non-common control business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method as at the
acquisition date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. Control is the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that currently are
exercisable.

Under the purchase method, the assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are consolidated using their
fair values. Cost of acquisition consists of the aggregate fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group. Goodwill represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired entity. When the excess is negative, it is
recognised immediately in the statement of income.
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Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group
incurred in connection with business combinations included any costs directly attributable to the
combination, such as professional fees paid to accountants, legal advisers, valuers and other consultants
to effect the combination. Transaction costs are capitalised into the cost of business combination.
General administrative costs and other costs that cannot be directly attributed to the particular
combination being accounted for are not included in the cost of the combination, they are recognized as
an expense when incurred.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that currently are exercisable are taken into account. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Associates (equity accounted investees)

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies. Associates are accounted for using the equity method (equity
accounted investees). The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the income
and expenses of the equity accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant
influence ceases. When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee,
the carrying amount of that interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced to nil and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has
made payments on behalf of the investee.

Minority interests

For changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in change in control, the
difference between the cost of acquisition or proceeds on disposal of the interest and the proportionate
carrying amount of net assets acquired or disposed at the date of exchange is recorded directly in equity.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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Foreign currency transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VND are translated into VND at
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Transactions in currencies other than VND during
the year have been translated into VND at rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates.

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the statement of income in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 10 (“VAS 10”) — The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost less allowance for diminution in value in the
Company’s separate financial statements. Allowance is made for reductions in investment values if
market value of the investment falls below cost or if the investee has suffered a loss. The allowance is
reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the allowance was recognised. An allowance is reversed only to the extent that the
investment’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that has been determined if no
allowance had been recognised.

Short-term investments

Short-term investments represent time deposits with original terms to maturity of more than three
months-from-their transactions date-and are stated-at cost.

Other long-term investments

Other long-term investments represent time deposits with original terms to maturity of more than
twelve months from their transactions date and are stated at cost.

Accounts receivable

Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debts.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and includes all costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost in the case of finished goods and work in progress includes raw materials, direct labour
and attributable manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price of
inventory items, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

The Company and the Group apply the perpetual method of accounting for inventory.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible
fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repair and
maintenance and overhaul cost, is charged to the statement of income in the year in which the costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure have resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of tangible fixed assets
beyond their originally asscssed standard of performance, the expenditure are capitalised as an
additional cost of tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed assets.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

*  buildings 5-25 years
* leasehold improvements 3 -5 years
* office equipment 3 - 6 years
* machinery and equipment 3 - 12 years
* motor vehicles 3 - 6 years

Intangible fixed assets

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. The initial cost of a land use right
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs incurred in conjunction with securing
the land use right. Amortisation is computed on a straight-line basis over their useful lives ranging
from 40 to 47 years.
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Software

Cost of acquiring new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised and
treated as an intangible asset. Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over four years.

Brand name
Cost of acquiring brand name is capitalised and treated as an intangible asset. Brand name is amortised
on a straight-line basis over five years.

The fair value of brand name acquired in a business combination is based on the discounted estimated
royalty payments that have been avoided as a result of the brand name being owned. The fair value of
brand name acquired in a business combination is recognised as an intangible asset and is amortised on
a straight-line basis over ten years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationships that are acquired by the Group on the acquisition of subsidiary is capitalised and
presented as an intangible asset. The fair value of customer relationships acquired in a business
combination is determined using the multi-period excess earnings method, whereby the subject assets
are valued after deducting a fair return on all other assets that are part of creating the related cash flows.
‘The fair value of customer relationship is amortised on a straight line basis over five years.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the cost of construction and machinery which have not been fully
completed or installed. No depreciation is provided for construction in progress during the period of
construction and installation.

Long-term prepayments

Prepaid land costs

Prepaid land costs comprise prepaid land lease rentals and other costs incurred in conjunction with
securing the use of leased land. These costs are recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease from 47 to 50 years.

Tools and supplies and printing axles

Tools and supplies and printing axles are stated at cost and amortised over 2 years.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arises on acquisition of a subsidiary from third parties in non-common control business
combinations and acquisition of an associate. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Cost of goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree.
When the excess is negative (negative goodwill), it is recognised immediately in the statement of
income. Goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over ten years. In respect of equity accounted
investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their cost.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company or the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.

Classification of financial instruments

Solely for the purpose of providing disclosures about the significance of financial instruments to the
Company’s or the Group’s financial position and results of operations and the nature and extent of risk
arising from financial instruments, the Company or the Group classifies its financial instruments as
follows:

Financial assets
Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is a financial asset that meets either of the following

conditions:

» It is considered by management as held for trading. A financial asset is considered as held for
trading if:

- itis acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;
- there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- a derivative (except for a derivative that is financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

= Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Company and the Group as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and a fixed maturity that the Company or the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity, other than:

* those that the Company or the Group upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through
profit or loss;

* those that the Company or the Group designates as available-for-sale; and
= those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than those:

= that the Company or the Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which are classified
as held for trading, and those that the entity on initial recognition designates as at fair value through
profit or loss;

» that the Company or the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-for-sale; or
* for which the Company or the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment,

other than because of credit deterioration, which are classified as available-for-sale.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for

sale or those are not classified as:

= financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
* held-to-maturity investments; or
= loans and receivables.

Cash equivalents, short-term investments and long-term investments are under the category of held to
maturity investments. All other financial assets are under the category of loans and receivables.
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Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability at fair value through profit or loss is a financial liability that meets either of the
following conditions:

= It is considered by management as held for trading. A financial liability is considered as held for
trading if:

- itis incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term;
- there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- a derivative (except for a derivative that is financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

* Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Company or the Group as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Financial liabilities which are not classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
classified as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost.

Guarantees issued are under the category of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss but
they are not recognised in the financial statements. All other financial liabilities on the balance sheet are
under the category of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost.

The above described classification of financial instruments is solely for presentation and disclosure
purpose and is not intended to be a description of how the instruments are measured. Accounting
policies for measurement of financial instruments are disclosed in other relevant notes.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised-in-the statement-of income except-to-the extent that it relates to-items recognised-directly to
equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or

substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

22



(@)
(i)

(i)

(r)

(s)
@

Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation

or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Equity

Share capital and capital surplus

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The excess of proceeds contributed over the par value of
shares issued is recorded as capital surplus. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from capital surplus.

Other reserves

Equity movements resulting from common-control business combination and acquisition of/disposal to
minority interests are recorded in Other reserves in equity.

Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the statement of income when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if there are
significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or the possible return of goods.

Financial income and financial expenses

Financial income

Financial income comprises interest income from deposits, interest income from loans and associated
income, dividend income, and foreign exchange gains.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis with reference to the principal outstanding and
the applicable interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company or Group’s right to receive dividend is established.
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Financial expenses

Financial expenses comprise interest expenses on borrowings and associated costs and foreign
exchange losses. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred,
except where the borrowing costs relate to borrowings in respect of the construction of tangible fixed
assets, in which case the borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction are capitalised as
part of the cost of the fixed assets concerned.

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the statement of income as an
integral part of the total lease expense.

Earnings per share

The Group and the Company present basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Group and the Company
do not have dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing related
products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different
from those of other segments. The Group’s primary format for segment reporting is based on business
segments.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise cash and cash
equivalents and related income, investments and related income, loans and borrowings and related
expenses, the Company’s headquarters’ corporate assets, general and administrative expenses, income
tax assets and liabilities and expenses, and items that are attributable to more than one segment and
cannot reasonably be allocated to a segment.

Related companies

Related companies include the shareholders and their ultimate parent companies and their subsidiaries
and associates.

Share-based payments

Shares issued to employees are recorded at their par value. Redemption of such shares performed by
related companies outside the Group is not recorded by the Group.

24



ST

"SISBQ 9[qBUOSEAI B UO PaJBIO][E 29 UBD yorym sasuadxa :o:wme_Ecm pue [e1oua3 pue sasuadxa 3ul[[es sjqeInqLye
Apoaiipur pue ‘sesuadxe uoljensIUIWpE pue Jeldusad pue sesuadxa Suljes 9[qeIngLIE A[IO2IIP ‘OnuUSAdI JO IS0 EoEmum sso] anusAal Juawdas juasardar synsal juswidag

611TITYSTT 650°60£°058°T 1gord 19N
109°1€L°6TE  €9T6LT 69 suadxa Xel Jwoou]
€9¢°80€°€T 09€°L£9°9T , sasuadxa 10430
0ZI'T11S°61 TST60TTS , Jwooul 1IN
|
SOT'IVL'L8S'T  6EF910P6TE suyord Sunerado 19N
¥98°9€0°18T  OIF166'1€S sasuadxa [eroueul]
8LO'S8I'900°T  0L9°LTLTEE'] JWODUI [BIDUBUIL]
165°860°1€1 T09°TH6'C91 sasuadxa UONEISIUIWPE PUE [EI2USS Pajeoo]jeu )
689°80€°1€ 89t°989°LT sasuadxa Suijjes pareao|eun)
1€2°000°S20T  6vT°606989°T (060°898°T) - - L8TSSST  (TI690TY)  $61°S80°0T1  0£9°001°9S  SIIWPLSS  601°986°60E | 6T6PPEGSY  P6v°888°S99°T  HTLGLI6HST  SHNSAI uawsag
0067107650 Ly6'88¥0ITY 089°€LT - - - 079'6T0°9L  TBTEEI'VBS  TSL'SLE'09  899°108'6S  THE'BSY'IED | LYETHTISIT 90S'LYTSSTT O0SYTIESIFT (o= EMWMM
toxcfact Bl 1 s - e - . ATl et I oy U - INUIAI
TLOBYR'9S0'L  0S9¥I¥'68E01 L8SL8STI - " = LLE'TTOTEE 00L°089°650°7 906'C98°€8E +8Y'68T'80F THO'00F'618°1| 0S9°SEE961°C  09STLEQOSy 9I8°801°STL'Y :qumvm @01
|
- - - - - - . - 906'S98°€8€  €69'V8TS0Y (61T°LLETS1) 7 (025°009'897)  (£89'388°002) (EL1'¥89'6€1) 10U - 20U2A2]
JuaWFIS-13U]
TLY'SYS'9SOL  0S9FIH68E°01 L8SLESTI - - - LLS'TTOTEE  00L089'6S0°7 - 16L% Gﬁhmnmooi OLI'9E6'POF'E  LYT19T60Ly 686°TOLP98y 19U - anuaAal
[ewaxg
000.ANA 000.aNA 000.ANA  000.ANA  000.ANA  000.0NA 000.aANA 000.ANA 000.ANA 000.dNA 000.aNA 000.aNA 000.aNA 000.NA
10T/TI/1E TI0T/TVIE  T10T/TV/IE CIOT/TV/IE N10T/TV/IE TI0Z/TL/IE  TL0T/TI/IE  TI0Z/TI/IE 110T/21/1€  TI0T/2V/IE Loz/ZI/iE | TI0T/TV/IE 110z/T1/1€ TIT/TI/IE
pajEpIjOSUO)) SIIYIQ AL P34 adelranag suideyaeg S3|pooN] Juejsu] $22NES P00

"110Z Jo pus ay3 e paddoss Ajureioduia) sem pue 10z ut dnoiny ay) Aq paysune| 3onpoid Mau € sem yoIym [10 wExooo sjuasaidal Ajurew Jusw3as ssauisng SIsYIQ
"SI9Y10 pue [[lw pag) ‘aFeiaAsq ‘Fuideyord ‘Sa[poou JUBISUI ‘SIONES POOJ AIB YOIYM SJUSWTAS SSAUISNG UIBW JAL) OJUI mEuEmow ssouisnq s dnoin) ay3 payisse[d dnoin ay

S)udWISIS ssauIsng

gunaodau Juaw3ag

Nd - 60 g wiog

(pPanunuod) 7107 12qUIdN( [€ papud .%um 33} 10J SJUIWIIE)S [BIIURUIJ Y} 0 SAJON
SILIBIPISQNS §)I pUE uone10d.10) JIWNSUO)) UES B\



9¢

785°8TY°69 126°€6L°901 = & E % = - - - - | - - - amyipuadxa
f [endes pajesojjeun)
0££°6669T €e9°186°CTI - - - - LY6'889VT  6£0°659°0T1  TITIL T9T9L S8LIV9'Y  TI9'G89'L  9£E7T6S TFL09S [[MPOOS pue sjasse

paxy ajqidueut
1O uonesoury

886°L60°16 €09°956°LST z = E E 115°08S°€ $98°691°1€ 098°990°1T  SLYELETT VI6TEL'TY  0S9°CSS Y €99°L1€°6T m?dowdm uonerdaidacy
89£°9€8°88Y 0€94Z0°T9L - = - - €65°796°C 018°L0S°6LF  T6S'B0Z'91  TTH'8EE01 61 _.mmmd_im SECSHY LT ¥9T'6TY THY €98°TEL 001 samupuadxa [ende])
000.dNA 000.aNA 000.dONA 000.ONA 000.ANA  000.ONA 000.ANA 000.aNA 000.ONA  000.ANA  000.ANA  000.ONA  000.ANA  000.ANA
110Z/T1/1E oT/TI/IE  110T/TV/IE TIOT/TVIE TI0T/TVIE  TI0T/TV/IE 10Z/Z/IE  TI0TIVIE  TI0T/TV/IE  TIOTZV/IE NLOTZL/IE ZTIOLZU/IE TIOTTL/IE  ZIOTTL/IE
P3lepIjOSu0) s3I0 AL PR3] EYIAEYET: | 3uideyoeyg Sa|popY JuBISU] $3Ines pooy

|

£78°80F°061°C  SOLIH0'8S8°C sanIIqel] [e10],

6¥LTISELEY  989°069°1TS S sanijiqer]
L pateao|[eUl)
vLO9PSIIT 610°15€°9¢€ - - = 7 9L6°L89°C9 SPT'SLTTIT  9£0°0ST'OT  919°0F9° 11 60L°799°9L 9SS°L66'88 ESEEH6'CH  66S°LEY'EL  Samiiqel] Juawgag
f
T6TSYL'6TO'El  SSL99E™LIT LI sjosse [B10]
v06°T08°0LS01  €T6°LE0TO9T1 . . o SjassE palRoo[[Eu[)
88CTP6'8CE'E  TEB'TEC99S  SSE'E96 - - SII°L8ELI6T LS6'CIL'LOL'T P¥B'STOTI6'T TIS'E89'BEL 8SL'BI'S61 O0891E'SEY CHTLI6TSS 8SLPIT'E86 698°6LY°L36 §19558 JUAWS3g
,
000.aNA 000.0NA 000.ANA 000.ONA 000.ONA  000.ANA 000.ONA 000.aNA 000.ONA  000.GNA  000.ONA  000.ONA  000.NA  000.ONA
110T/T1/1€ CTIYIE  TI0T/TV/IE TIOT/TV/IE TI0T/TI/IE  TI0T/TV/IE 110Z/21/1€  TI0T/TL/IE  TI0T/TV/IE  TI0T/TL/IE :cdu_im [ALUZ0A V) S § (17454 V) ENrA {1 14 VA £
pajepijosuo)) s13Y10 Al P34 aderanag Suiseyoey S3|popN JuESU] $3INES pooy

"[2A3] 91e10d100 2Y] JB paunoul aIe sasuadxa asay ],
"SISBQ S[qRUOSEAI B UO JUSWISIS Yord 0} PIJeIO[|B 3G JOUURD SSISSE JUSWATRUBL YDIym sasuadxs uonensiunupe pue [e1ousd pue sasuadxa Suif|as jussaidal sasuadxa pareooj[eun

7 .
NQ - 60 g uLiog |

|

(panunuod) 717 19quIdAI( [ PIPUI JeIA Y} 10] SJUIWIIE)S [BIDUBULY IY) 03 SIJON
mmt«%_fn:m $)1 pue uonea0d.ao)) JAWNSUO)) UES BJA]




(b)

Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Details of unallocated assets and unallocated liabilities are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable — short-term
Inventories

Other assets

Fixed assets

Long-term assets

Unallocated assets

Short-term borrowings and liabilities
Accounts payable — trade

Advances from customers

Tax payable to State Treasury
Payables to employees

Accrued expenses

Other short-term payables

Current liabilities

Long-term borrowings and liabilities
Other long-term liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Provision for severance allowance

Long-term borrowings and liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Geographical segments

The Group operates in one geographical segment which is in Vietnam.

Form B 09 — DN

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

VYND’000 VYND’000
3,383,585,011 4,730,726,781
1,772,500,000 802,000,000
93,650,207 2,422,048,643
60,382,666 53,192,537
169,314,562 120,436,509
242,561,645 138,670,851

5,880,043,832

2,303,727,583

11,602,037,923

10,570,802,904

1,683,446,854

1,402,397,570

309,145,587 243,995,255
9,578,084 5,381,811
537,941,456 218,696,878
38,061 38,423
307,148,429 297,199,624
28,769,522 1,119,283
2,876,067,993  2,168,828,844
2,521,943,420  2,576,057,093
14,582,966 3,965,976
109,096,307 222,437,992

; 2,572,844

2,645,622,693

2,805,033,905

5,521,690,686

4,973,862,749
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Acquisition of equity interests

Acquisition of Hoa Muoi Gio Company Limited — common control transaction

On 11 October 2012, the Company acquired 100% equity interest of Hoa Muoi Gio Company Limited (“Hoa
Muoi Gio”) from Ma San Group Corporation, for a total consideration of VND10,000,000 excluding
transactions costs.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities on acquisition date:

Pre-acquisition
carrying amounts

VND’000
Cash and cash equivalents 73,998
Other current assets 529,242
Investment in associate 2,015,747,859
Current liabilities (2,034,260,699)
Total net identifiable liabilities acquired (17,909,600)
Consideration paid 10,000
Differences recorded in other reserves 17,919,600

Hoa Muoi Gio is an investment holding company. Through the acquisition, the Group has acquired an
effective 40% equity interest in Vietnamese-French Cattle Feed Joint Stock Company.

The net profit after tax of Hoa Muoi Gio after the acquisition was VND5,477 million.

The net loss of Hoa Muoi Gio before the acquisition was VND17,918 million.

Acquisition of minority interests in Vinacafe Bien Hoa Joint Stock Company

The Company’s 50.25% direct ownership interest as at 31 December 2011 in Vinacafe Bien Hoa Joint Stock
Company (“Vinacafe”) was increased to 53.2% as a result of the acquisition of further 2.95% equity interest of
Vinacafe as follows:

- From 3 October 2012 to 12 October 2012, the Company acquired further 574,490 shares of Vinacafe, for a
total consideration of VND89,492 million.

- From 25 October 2012 to 31 October 2012, the Company acquired further 55,880 shares of Vinacafe, for a
total consideration of VND8,448 million.

- On 5 December 2012, the Company acquired further 155,280 shares of Vinacafe, for a total consideration
of VND24,104 million.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

The acquisition has the following effects:

Cost of acquisition
Net assets acquired

Differences recorded in other reserves

Cost of acquisition comprised:
Cash paid

Cash and cash equivalents

Form B 09 - DN
VND?000
122,044,452
(48,380,464)
73,663,988
VYND’000
122,044,452
Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND?000
1,058,950 495,902
16,652,158 18,587,887

853,500,000 1,529,200,000

Group
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000
Cash on hand 1,826,091 2,317,064
Cash in banks 67,025,939 51,985,286
Cash equivalents 3,314,732,981 4,676,424,431
Cash and cash equivalents in the 3.383,585.011 4.730,726,781

statement of cash flows

871,211,108 1,548,283,789

Cash equivalents represent term deposits to banks with original terms to maturity of three months or less from
their transactions dates. The term deposits are denominated in VND and USD, and earned interest at rates
ranging from 8% to 9% per annum for VND and 0.5% per annum for USD during the year (2011: 14% per
annum for VND and 0.5% per annum for USD), respectively.

Accounts receivable — short-term and long-term

Accounts receivable short-term includes the following amounts due from related companies:

Group Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VYND’000 VYND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Trade - - 9,472,110 1,043

The trade related amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and are receivable within 30 — 60
days from invoice date.
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Other short-term receivables comprised:

Group Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000

Non-trade amounts due from Ma San Group
Corporation, the parent company

= Loans receivable - 2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000
= Accrued interest receivable - 261,698,630 - 261,698,630
Non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries
= Dividends receivable - - 1,962,010,262 1,029,560,503
=  [oans receivable . - - 2,055,330,695 27,330,695
=  Accrued interest receivable - - 79,073,011 -
= Deposit interest income receivable - - - 3,965,976
Non-trade amounts due from other related
companies - 99,963 - -
Dividend receivable from Vietnamese-French
Cattle Feed Joint Stock Company 64,000,000 - - -
Accrued interest receivable from deposits at
banks 79,694,131 24,065,308 58,312,208 13,122,361
Others 9,833,641 2,867,933 514,525 56,510

153,527,772 2,288,731,834 4,155,240,701 3,335,734,675

The short-term loans receivable from Ma San Group Corporation were denominated in VND, unsecured and
bore interest at 13% per annum during the year (31/12/2011: ranging from 15% to 18% per annum). On 1
January 2012, the Company and Ma San Group Corporation made an amendment agreement whereby the term
of this loan has been extended to 4 years from the disbursement date which occurred on 24 March 2011. The
interest rate has also been agreed to be at 13% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The short-term loans receivable from subsidiaries include 2 loans. The loan 1 amounting to VND2,028,000
million was unsecured and bore interest at 12% per annum during the year. The loan 2 amounting to
VND27,331 million was unsecured and interest free.

The remaining non-trade amounts due from the subsidiaries and other related companies were unsecured,
interest free and receivable on demand.
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Other long-term receivables comprised:
Group Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Non-trade amounts due from Ma San
Group Corporation, the parent company
* Loans receivable 4,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 4,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
= Accrued interest receivable 964,420,124 134,440,274 964,420,124 134,440,274
» Facility fee receivable 482,583,082 125,721,232 482,583,082 125,721,232
Accrued interest receivable from deposits
at banks 23,157,903 - 14,832,125 -

5,470,161,109  2,260,161,506 5,461,835,331 2,260,161,506

The long-term loans receivable from Ma San Group Corporation as at 31 December 2012 include two long-
term loans with original amount of VND2,000 billion each. The loans were unsecured and bore interest at 13%
per annum (2011: 15% and 18% per annum). The loans mature in 4 and 5 years from the drawdown date of
each loan, which occurred on 24 March 2011 and 17 August 2011, respectively. The interest is receivable on
the maturity date of the loan agreement.

The facility fee receivable was charged at 15% per annum on an unsecured loan facility made available to Ma
San Group Corporation of USD108 million, which has not been drawdown by Ma San Group Corporation as at
31 December 2012 (31/12/2011: 15% per annum.).

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year were as follows:

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Opening balance 1,083,816 704,511 824,837 549,777
Increase in allowance during the year 143,814 379,305 - 275,060
Allowance utilised during the year 832,368 - (824,837 -
Written back (17,494) - - -
Closing balance 377,768 1,083,816 - 824,837

As at 31 December 2012, certain trade receivables of the Group were pledged with banks as security for loans
granted to Ma San Consumer Corporation and Ma San Industrial One Member Company Limited (formerly
known as Masan Industrial Corporation) (See Notes 17 and 23).
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Inventories

Goods in transit

Raw materials

Tools and supplies
Work in progress
Finished goods
Merchandise inventories

Allowance for inventories

Movements in the allowance for inventories during the year were as follows:

Opening balance

Increase in allowance during the year
Allowance utilised during the year

Written back

Closing balance

Group Company
31/12/2012  31/12/2011 31/12/2012  31/12/2011
VND?’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
15,348,733 31,028,273 - 10,781,170
396,320,672 403,163,681 15,406,738 9,088,959
26,793,824 7,736,864 - -
88,448,423 64,939,175 - .
48,912,429 118,879,002 & 1,924,224
22,030 - 22,031,629 32,022,455
575,846,111 625,746,995 37,438,367 53,816,808
(11,990,882)  (12,900,974) (395,463) (753,290)
563,855,229 612,846,021 37,042,904 53,063,518
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
12,900,974 6,347,188 753,290 190,197
46,618,335 86,429,983 1,555,596 1,162,577
(41,705,365)  (79,408,443)  (1,677,498) (599,484)
(5,823,062) (467,754) (235,925) -
11,990,882 12,900,974 395,463 753,290

As at 31 December 2012, certain inventories of the Group were pledged with banks as security for
loans granted to Ma San Industrial One Member Company Limited (formerly known as Masan
Industrial Corporation) (see Notes 17 and 23).
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
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Included in the cost of tangible fixed assets were assets costing VND71,270 million which were fully
depreciated as of 31 December 2012 (31/12/2011: VND34,284 million), but which are still in active use.

As at 31 December 2012, tangible fixed assets with carrying value of VND613,304 million (31/12/2011:
VND312,378 million) were pledged with banks as security for loans granted to the Group.

The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets retired from active use and held for disposal amounted to
VND24,138 million as of 31 December 2012 (31/12/2011: VND23,946 million).

The carrying amount of temporarily idle equipment in tangible fixed assets amounted to VND35,566
million as of 31 December 2012 (31/12/2011: VND7,914 million).

Machinery
Leasehold Office and Motor
Company Buildings improvements equipment equipment  vehicles Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000  VND’000  VND’000 VND’000
Cost
Opening balance 403,358 6,665,358 11,745,292 6,594,727 10,647,388 36,056,123
Additions - 111,895 2,234,724 489,255 256,881 3,092,755

Transfer from
construction in

progress 325,972 663,818 281,933 1,452,343 - 2,724,066
Disposals - - (194,327) (10,092) (331,484) (535,903)
Write off - - (94,867) - - (94,867)
Reclassifications 702,081 - (2,861,159) 2,147,978 11,100 -
Closing balance 1,431,411 7,441,071 11,111,596 10,674,211 10,583,885 41,242,174

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance 179,270 4,326,776 6,258,831 1,999,807 8,465,214 21,229,898
Charge for the year 113,037 2,346,880 2,818,374 1,501,095 1,029,900 7,809,286
Disposals - - (185,757) (7,317) (331,484) (524,558)

_ Writeoff - - - (94867) - _ - (94,867)
Reclassifications 397,846 - (1,857,280) 1,455,549 3,885 -
Closing balance 690,153 6,673,656 6,939,301 4,949,134 9,167,515 28,419,759

Net book value

Opening balance 224,088 2,338,582 5,486,461 4,594,920 2,182,174 14,826,225
Closing balance 741,258 767,415 4,172,295 5,725,077  1,416370 12,822,415

Included in the cost of tangible fixed assets were assets costing VND9,479 million which were fully
depreciated as of' 31 December 2012 (31/12/2011: VND5,689 million), but which are still in active use.
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Intangible fixed assets

Group

Cost

Opening balance

Additions

Transfer from construction in
progress

Closing balance

Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance
Amortisation for the year

Closing balance

Net book value

Opening balance
Closing balance

Land use Customer
rights Software Brand name relationship Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
142,624,698 8,982,999 544,435,586 320,647,475 1,016,690,758
- 403,812 - - 403,812
1,732,501 171,882 - - 1,904,383
144,357,199 9,558,693 544,435,586 320,647,475 1,018,998,953
12,052,990 4,875,264 9,422,411 10,688,249 37,038,914
3,867,178 2,093,523 54,505,097 64,129,496 124,595,294
15,920,168 6,968,787 63,927,508 74,817,745 161,634,208
130,571,708 4,107,735 535,013,175 309,959,226 979,651,844
128,437,031 2,589,906 480,508,078 245,829,730 857,364,745

Included in the cost of intangible fixed assets were assets costing VND1,931 million which were fully

amortised as of 31 December 2012 (31/12/2011: VND24 million), but which are still in use.

At 31 December 2012 land use rights with a carrying value of VND53,659 million (31/12/2011:
VND55,088 million) were pledged with banks as security for loans granted to the Group.
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Intangible fixed assets (continued)

Company Software Brand name Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Cost
Opening balance 8,894,313 636,364 9,530,677
Additions 403,812 - 403,812
Transfer from construction in progress 171,882 - 171,882
Closing balance 9,470,007 636,364 10,106,371
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 4,801,396 359,091 5,160,487
Amortisation for the year 2,083,852 125,175 2,209,027
Closing balance 6,885,248 484,266 7,369,514
Net book value
Opening balance 4,092,917 277,273 4,370,190
Closing balance 2,584,759 152,098 2,736,857

Included in the cost of intangible fixed assets were assets costing VND1,868 million which were fully
amortised as of 31 December 2012 (31/12/2011: nil), but which are still in use.
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Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Opening balance 577,188,957 292,418,033 959,466 -
Acquisition of subsidiary - 4,273,406 - -
Additions during the year 874,241,502 489,763,436 2,719,310 2,626,941
Transfer to tangible fixed assets (769,883,366) (207,173,843) (2,724,066) (1,667,475)
Transfer to intangible fixed assets (1,904,383) - (171,882) -
Transfer to long-term prepayments (7,782,098) (2,092,075) (58,025) -
Closing balance 671,860,612 577,188,957 724,803 959,466
Major constructions in progress were as follows:
Group Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000 VYND’000 VND’000
I easehold improvements 724,803 959,466 724,803 959,466
Buildings 347,254,925 4,712,118 - -
Machinery and equipment 321,312,369 570,451,094 - -
Other tangible fixed assets 2,568,515 1,066,279 - -
671,860,612 577,188,957 724,803 959,466

During the year, borrowing costs capitalised into construction in progress amounted to VND33,156

million (2011: VND33,285 million).
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12. Investments
Group Company

31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000

Long-term investments

Investments in subsidiaries -
Investment in an associate 1,967,387,118 -
Other long-term investments 365,500,000

1

2,088,173,387 1,766,118,935

234,500,000 -

2,332,887,118 2,322,673,387 1,766,118,935

Short-term investments
Term deposits at banks 1,772,500,000 802,000,000 1,413,000,000 326,200,000

Details of the investments in subsidiaries are as follows:
31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Name VND’000 VND’000

Vinacafe Bien Hoa Joint Stock Company 1,209,140,528 1,087,096,076
Masan Food Company Limited 879,022,859 679,022,859
Hoa Muoi Gio One Member Company Limited 10,000 -

2,088,173,387 1,766,118,935

Term deposits at banks represent deposits with original terms to maturity of more than three months from
their transaction dates. The term deposits are denominated in Vietham Dong and earned interest at rates
ranging from 9% to 11.5% (2011: 14%) per annum during the year.

Other long-term investments represent deposits with original terms to maturity of more than twelve months
from their transaction dates. The term deposits are denominated in Vietnam Dong and earned interest rate at
% per-annum-during the year. —

At 31 December 2012, investments in subsidiaries of VND879,033 million (31/12/2011: VND679,023
million) and in associate were pledged with bank as security for loans granted to the Group.
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13. Group entities

The following are the details of the consolidated subsidiaries and associate as at 31 December 2012:

Name

Masan Food Company Limited

Ma San Industrial One Member Company Limited
(formerly known as Masan Industrial Corporation)

Viet Tien Food Technology One Member Company
Limited (formerly known as Viet Tien Food

Technology Joint Stock Company)

Minh Viet Packaging One Member Company Limited
(formerly known as Minh Viet Packaging Joint Stock

Company)

Ma San PQ Corporation

Ma San HD One Member Company Limited (formerly
known as Ma San HD Joint Stock Company)

Vinacafe Bien Hoa Joint Stock Company

Hoa Muoi Gio Company Limited

Vietnamese-French Cattle Feed Joint Stock Company

Address

12" Floor, Kumho Asiana Plaza Saigon — 39
Le Duan, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi
Minh City, Vietnam.

Lot 6, Tan Dong Hiep A Industrial Park, Di An
Ward, Binh Duong Province, Vietnam

Lot III-10-Industrial Group III, Tan Binh
Industrial Park, Tan Phu District, Ho Chi Minh
City, Vietnam

Lot IlI-12-Industrial Group III, Tan Binh
Industrial Park, Tan Phu District, Ho Chi Minh
City, Vietnam

261 Nguyen Trung Truc, Ward , Duong Dong
Town, Phu Quoc District, Kien Giang
Province, Vietnam

[.ot 22, Dai An Industrial Zone, Hai Duong
City, Hai Duong Province, Vietnam

Bien Hoa Industrial Zone I, Bien Hoa City,
Dong Nai province, Vietnam.

12" Floor, Kumho Asiana Plaza Saigon — 39
Le Duan, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi
Minh City, Vietnam.

Road No. 9, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Zone, An
Binh Ward, Dong Nai province.
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Long-term prepayments

Group

Opening balance

Additions

Transfer from construction in progress
Transfers from tangible fixed assets
Amortisation for the year

Closing balance

Company

Opening balance

Addition

Transfers from construction in progress
Amortisation for the year

Closing balance

Form B 09 - DN
Prepaid land Printing Tools and
costs axles supplies Total
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
2,346,344 564,167 3,463,962 6,374,473
- 3,376,642 4,179,517 7,556,159
- - 7,782,098 7,782,098
- - 6,958,149 6,958,149
(2,286,309) (3,232,171) (4,238,114) (9,756,594)
60,035 708,638 18,145,612 18,914,285
Tools and
supplies
VND’000
142,493
494,227
58,025
(352,826)
341,919
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15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
(i)  Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Deferred tax  Deferred tax  Deferred tax  Deferred tax
Group assets liabilities assets liabilities
VYND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Allowance for doubtful debts - - 206,209 -
Accrued sales discounts 9,132,553 - 17,468,940 -
Accrued transportation costs 6,677,045 - 7,425,632 -
Accrued advertising and
promotion expenses 14,193,438 - 21,740,341 -
Other accruals 4,040,962 s 5,518,582 -
Unrealised profit 1,990,946 - 3,591,440 -
Tangible fixed assets - (11,330,275) - (12,808,137)
Intangible fixed assets - (97,766,032) - (106,785,251)
Other receivables — short-term - - - (68,957,541)
Other receivables — long-term - - - (65,040,376)
36,034,944  (109,096,307) 55,951,144  (253,591,305)
Set off of tax - - (3:14153,313) 31,153,313
36,034,944  (109,096,307) 24,797,831 (222,437,992)
Company 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Deferred tax  Deferred tax  Deferred tax  Deferred tax
assets liabilities assets liabilities
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Altowance fordoubtful debts— O — = 206,200 =
Accrued sales discounts 9,132,553 - 17,468,940 -
Accrued transportation costs 6,311,888 - 7,363,105 -
Accrued advertising and
promotion expenses 4,970,204 - 4,184,396 -
Other accruals 754,449 - 1,678,371 -
Other receivables — short-term - - - (68,705,249)
Other receivables — long-term - - - (65,040,376)
21,169,094 - 30,901,021 (133,745,625)
Set off of tax . - (30,901,021) 30,901,021
21,169,094 - - (102,844,604)
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Goodwill

Cost
Opening/Closing balance

Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance
Charge for the year

Closing balance

Net book value

Opening balance
Closing balance

Form B 09 - DN

VND’000

284,728,173

7,623,181
28,472,817

36,095,998

277,104,992
248,632,175
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 09 — DN
Short-term borrowings and liabilities
Group Company

31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Short-term borrowings 1,540,393,217 1,298,728,337 758,686,221 689,769,290
Current portion of long-term
borrowings (See Note 23) 143,053,637 103,669,233 - -

1,683,446,854 1,402,397,570 758,686,221 689,769,290

Terms and conditions of outstanding short-term borrowings were as follows:

Nominal Group Company
interest rate 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Currency (per annum) VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VYND*000

Short-term borrowings

Secured bank loans VND 8.2%-13.0% 1,540,393,217 815,822,006 758,686,221 208,399,128
Secured bank loans usD 6.5% - 1,536,169 - -
Unsecured bank loans VND 15.7% - 18.0% - 481,370,162 - 481,370,162

1,540,393,217 1,298,728,337 758,686,221 689,769,290

The secured bank loans are secured over certain trade receivables and inventories with a carrying amount of
USD26.25 million, equivalent to VND546,000 million (31/12/2011: USDS5 million, equivalent to
VNDI104,140 million) and fixed assets with a carrying value of VND666,963 million (31/12/2011:
VND367,466 million). Part of these fixed assets with carrying value of VND632,006 million was also used
as security for long-term borrowings and accordingly, included in the amount of security disclosed in Note
23.

Accounts payables — trade

Accounts payahlp — trade_include.the fnllnwing amounts due to related 0nmpanieq'

Group Company
31/12/2012  31/12/2011  31/12/2012  31/12/2011

VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Trade - - 2,228,471,324 246,244,800

Amounts due to other related companies
Trade 6,336,536 3,397,383 4,993,289 2,433,783

6,336,536 3,397,383 2,233,464,613 248,678,583

The trade related amounts due to related companies were unsecured, interest free and payable at call.
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
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19. Taxes payable to State Treasury
Group Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Value added tax 32,660,367 41,071,216 - 10,492,903
Import-export tax 11,230,283 14,810,029 431,369 418,653
Corporate income tax 513,890,172 159,796,380 273,163,504 13,748,800
Personal income tax 2,802,011 348,223 2,653,496 259,815
Other taxes 20,747 2,671,030 - 2,671,031
560,003,580 218,696,878 276,248,369 27,591,202
20. Accrued expenses
Group Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000 VYND’000 VND’000
Transportation expenses 30,614,978 29,702,527 25,247,552 29,452,419
Bonus and 13th month salary 45,011,058 28,645,606 17,726,712 8,145,920
Advertising and promotion expenses 139,125,019 177,363,881 25,845,496 16,737,586
Sales discounts 41,187,829 69,875,761 36,530,214 69,875,761
Accrual interest expenses 68,028,786 8,141,270 1,191,344 -
Purchases not yet received invoices 28,138,649 13,616,201 - -
Others 42,541,799 29,637,039 - 34,087
394,648,118 356,982,285 106,541,318 124,245,773
21. Other short-term payables
Group Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Trade union fees 1,201,954 517,991 - -
Social and health insurance 233,460 1,066,146 148,095 10,550
Short-term deposits from customers 480,000 19,705,000 - -
Non-trade amounts due to other
related companies - 26,573 - -
Others 29,433,635 3,282,946 19,614 442,623
31,349,049 24,598,656 167,709 453,173

The non-trade amounts due to related companies were unsecured, interest free and payable at call.
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
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22. Other long-term liabilities

Other long-term liabilities represent deposit interest income payable to Ma San Group Corporation. The
amounts were unsecured, interest free and are payable on 17 August 2014,

23. Long-term borrowings and liabilities

Group Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VYND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Long-term borrowings 2,664,997.057 2,679,726,326 - -

Repayable within twelve months (Note 17) (143,053,637) (103,669,233) - -

Repayable after twelve months 2,521,943,.420 2,576,057,093 - -

Terms and conditions of outstanding long-term borrowings were as follows:

Nominal Group Company
interest rate  Year of  31/12/2012 31/12/2011  31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Currency (per annum) maturity VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000

Long-term borrowings
Secured bank loans VND 14.1% - 20% 2013-2017 418,597,057 430,302,326 " -
Secured bank loan USD Libor + 7% 2014 2,246,400,000 2,249,424,000 - -

2,664,997,057 2,679,726,326 - -

The secured bank loans denominated in VND amounting to VND418,597 million were secured over certain
fixed assets with a carrying amount of VND632,006 million as of 31 December 2012 (31/12/2011:
VND310,560 million).

~The secured bank loan denominated in USD amounting to- VND2,246,400 mitlionwas secured by investments—
in subsidiaries amounting to VND879,033 million (31/12/2011: VND679,023 million) and in associate. The
loan bore interest at Libor plus 3.5% per annum during the first year, Libor plus 7.0% per annum during the
second year and Libor plus 10.0% per annum during the third year after draw down. The outstanding balance at
31 December 2012 is repayable in one instalment on the termination date. The facility is available for thirty-six
months. The Group has the option to extend the loan after twelve, eighteen, twenty four and thirty months upon
payment of an extension fee amounting to VND56,797 million for each extension.

During the year, the Company and the Group complied with the loan covenants on the above borrowings.
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
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Provision for severance allowance

Movements of provision for severance allowance during the year were as follows:

Group Company
2012 2012
VND’000 VND’000
Opening balance 7,183,331 1,667,081
Provision made during the year 731,620 -
Provision used during the year (754,463) (79,949)
Provision reversed during the year (7,160,488) (1,587,132)

Closing balance - -

Under the Vietnamese Labour Code, when employees who have worked for 12 months or more
(“eligible employees™) voluntarily terminates their labour contracts, the employer is required to pay the
eligible employees severance allowance calculated based on years of service and employees’
compensation at termination. Provision for severance allowance has been provided based on
employees’ years of service and their current salary level.

Pursuant to Law on Social Insurance, cffective from 1 January 2009, the Company and its employees
are required to contribute to an unemployment insurance fund managed by the Vietnam Social
Insurance Agency. The contribution to be paid by each party is calculated at 1% of the lower of the
employees’ basic salary and 20 times the general minimum salary level as specified by the Government
from time to time. With the implementation of the unemployment insurance scheme, the Company is
no longer required to provide severance allowance for the service period after 1 January 2009.
However, severance allowance to be paid to existing eligible employees as of 31 December 2008 will
be determined based on the eligible employees’ years of service as of 31 December 2008 and their
average salary for the six-month period prior to the termination date.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company contributed VND4,295 million and
VND1,389 million, respectively (2011: VND2,945 million and VND1,008 million, respectively) to the

unemployment insurance fund and the amount is recorded as part of labour and staff costs in the

consolidated and separate statements of income.
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
Share capital and capital surplus
The Company’s authorised and issued share capital are:
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Number of Number of
shares VND’000 shares VND’000

Authorised share capital 502,500,000 5,025,000,000 250,000,000 2,500,000,000

Issued share capital

Ordinary shares 502,500,000 5,025,000,000 250,000,000 2,500,000,000

Shares currently in circulation

Ordinary shares 250,000,000 2,500,000,000

502,500,000  5,025,000,000

Capital surplus - 3,111,514,809 - 3,111,514,809

All ordinary shares have a par value of VND10,000. Each share is entitled to one vote at meetings of
the Company. Shareholders are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time. All
ordinary shares are ranked equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. In respect of shares
bought back by the Company, all rights are suspended until those shares are reissued.

Capital surplus represents the excess of the proceeds on issuance of shares over the par value.

Movements in issued share capital during the year were as follows:

2012 2011
Number of Number of
shares VYND’000 shares VYND’000
Balance at the beginning of the year 250,000,000 2,500,000,000 130,000,000 1,300,000,000
Shares issued during the year 1,250,000 12,500,000 17,058,824 170,588,240
Share dividends issued during the year 251,250,000 2,512,500,000 102,941,176 1,029,411,760
Balance at the end of the year 502,500,000 5,025,000,000 250,000,000 2,500,000,000
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Total revenue

Form B 09 - DN

Total revenue represents the gross value of goods sold and services rendered exclusive of value added

tax.

Net revenue comprised:

Total revenue
»  Sales of finished goods
= Services and other sales

Less revenue deductions
= Sales discounts
= Sales returns

Net revenue

Cost of sales

Total cost of sales
=  Finished goods sold

= Allowance for inventories

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000

8,767,253,662 7,156,610,699
7,351,077 11,763,203

10,575,020,585 7,238,993,731
228,960 9,293

(150,242,775) (119,855,867) (130,762,251) (119,855,867)
(35,592,120)  (62,298,485)  (26,987,925)  (62,271,447)

10,389,414,650 7,056,848,672 8,616,854,563 6,986,246,588

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000

6,138,130,430 3,911,871,543 8,160,964,097 6,629,356,728
40,795,273 85,962,229 1,319,671 1,162,577

6,178,925,703 3,997,833,772 8,162,283,768 6,630,519,305
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Financial income

Group
2012 2011
VND’000 VND’000
Interest income from deposits to banks 372,138,486 451,398,381
Interest income from loan to a subsidiary - -
Interest income from loans 17,897,867 -
Interest income from the parent company 925,143,070 542,969,142
Deposit interest income from subsidiary - -
Dividend income declared by subsidiaries - -
Foreign exchange gains 14,612,034 10,878,541
Other financial income 2,936,213 939,014

Form B 09 - DN
Company
2012 2011

VND’000 YND’000
255,554,251 391,013,193
61,175,144 -
17,897,867 -
025,143,070 542,969,142
10,616,990 3,965,976
2,328,349,112 1,814,735,679
1,474,306 1,214,235

1,332,727,670 1,006,185,078

3,600,210,740 2,753,898,225

Financial expenses

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VYND’000
Interest expense 487,983,049 250,018,940 467,139,917 187,452,611
Foreign exchange losses 6,512,301 9,982,281 1,099,363 350,711
Withholding tax on interest expense and
extension fee 15,388,894 6,808,387 - -
Other financial expense 22,107,166 14,227,256 - -

531,991,410 281,036,864 468,239,280 187,803,322
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
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Other income

Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets

Proceeds from scrap sales
Import tax refund

Provision for severance allowance reversed

Others

Other expenses

Net book value of disposed fixed assets

Cost of scrap sales
Tax penalties
Others

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
VND’000 VND’000  VND’000 VND’000
2,023,051 2,406,498 87,895 53,303
20,630,373 13,747,057 - -
18,977,397 2,351,717 . ;
7,160,488 ; 1,587,132 ;
3,417,943 1,005,848 1,050,871 160,326
5§2.209,252 19,511,120 2,725,898 213,629
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
VND’000  VND’000  VND’000 VND’000
6,931,723 7,374,534 11,345 11,439
15,758,613 12,392,630 : .
2,079,556 3,314,839 1320 2,671,031
1,867,477 226,562 51,989 64,231
26,637,369 23,308,565 64,654 2,746,701
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN

33. Income tax
(a) Recognised in the statement of income
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Current tax expense
Current year 601,604,877 199,849,398 273,224,034 16,035,611
(Over)/under-provision in prior years (7,746,816) 4,431,279 164,036 4,317,649
593,858,061 204,280,677 273,388,070 20,353,260
Deferred tax (income)/expense
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (124,578,798) 125,450,924 (124,013,698) 125,939,831
(124,578,798) 125,450,924 (124,013,698) 125,939,831
Income tax expense 469,279,263 329,731,601 149,374,372 146,293,091
(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Group 2012 2011
% VND’000 % VND’000
Profit before tax 3,319,588,322 2,583,943,720
Tax at the Company’s income tax rate 25.00% 829,897,081 25.00% 645,985,930
Effect of incentive tax rates in subsidiaries (11.02%) (365,780,556) (13.07%) (337,836,362)
Tax exempt income (0.02%) (638,822) - -
Non-deductible expenses 0.41% 13,548,376  0.66% 17,150,754
(Over)/under-provision in prior years (0.23%) (7,746,816) 0.17% 4,431,279
14.14% 469,279,263  12.76% 329,731,601
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(c)

(d)

Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN

Income tax (continued)

Company 2012 2011

% VND’000 Y% VND’000
Profit before tax (*) 2,923,818,028 2,378,123,987
Tax at the Company’s income tax rate 25.00% 730,954,507  25.00% 594,530,997
Tax exempt income (19.91%) (582,087,278) (19.08%) (453,683,920)
Non-deductible expenses 0.01% 343,107 0.05% 1,128,365
Under provision in prior years 0.01% 164,036 0.18% 4,317,649

5.11% 149,374,372 6.15% 146,293,091

(*) The Company’s ploft before tax included VND2,328,349 million (2011: VND1,814,736 million)
dividend income which is not subject to tax.

Applicable tax rates

Under the terms of its Business Registration Certificate, the Company has an obligation to pay income
tax to the government at the rate of 28% of taxable profits. Effective 1 January 2009, the Company’s
income tax rate is reduced from 28% to 25% due to a change in the income tax law.

The Company’s subsidiaries enjoy various tax incentives which provide some subsidiaries with further
tax exemptions and reductions.

Tax contingencies

The taxation laws and their application in Vietnam are subject to interpretation and change over time as
well as from one tax office to another. The final tax position may be subject to review and
investigation by a number of authorities, who are enabled by law to impose severe fines, penalties and

interest charges. These facts may create fax risks in Vietnam that are substantially more significant
than in other countries. Management believes that it has adequately provided for tax liabilities based on
its interpretation of tax legislation, including on transfer pricing requirements and computation of
corporate income tax. However, the relevant authorities may have differing interpretations and the
effects could be significant.
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(a)

(b)

Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
Commitments

Capital expenditure

As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company had the following outstanding capital
commitments approved but not provided for in the balance sheet:

Group Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000 VYND’000 VND’000
Approved and contracted 449,529,404 307,394,975 - 2071
Approved but not contracted 558,795,692 235,344,940 - 1,638,586
1,008,325,096 542,739,915 - 1,641,357

Leases

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were:

Group Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND’000 VND’000 VYND’000 VND’000
Within one year 65,829,224 33,650,609 51,371,093 31,473,909
Within two to five years 61,125,854 67,513,115 51,546,576 63,460,149
More than five years - 34,450,210 - -

126,955,078 135,613,934 102,917,669 94,934,058
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36.

(a)

(b)

Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Form B 09 - DN

The calculation of basic earnings per share at 31 December 2012 was based on the profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of VND2,764,147 million (31/12/2011: VND2,253,420 million) of the Group and
VND?2,774,444 million (31/12/2011: VND2,231,831 million) of the Company, respectively, and a
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 501,712,329 (2011: 482,121,765),

calculated as follows:

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Group
2012 2011

VND’000 VND’000

Net profit attributable to ordinary

2,764,147.059 2,253,419,913
shareholders

Company
2011 2012

VYND’000 VND’000

2,774,443,656 2,231,830,896

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year
Effect of shares issued during the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the end of the year

Group and Company
2011
2012 (Restated)

500,000,000 442,000,000
1,712,329 40,121,765

501,712,329 482,121,765

On 15 May 2012, 251, 250 000 of ordmary shares were issued as dividends to existing sharcholders at

held

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of 2011 and 2012 have been adjusted to reflect the share
dividends issued in 2011 and 2012. Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2011

have also been restated accordingly to reflect these share dividends.
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38.

(a)

Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 09 — DN

Share-based payment

The number of shares issuable to employees for services rendered is as follows:

2012 2011
Employees 1,149,594 683,466
Members of the Board of Directors (excluded from employees’ numbers) 131,521 268,334

Shares granted to employees and key management personnel were issued periodically after
shareholders’ approval.

At 31 December 2012, the Company also has a commitment to issue 565,590 shares to employees for
services rendered from May to December 2012 included in the shares disclosed above.

Risk management

The Group and the Company have exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk; and
- Market risk

The Board of Director has overall responsibility for establishing, developing and monitoring the
Group’s risk management policies.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group and the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group and
the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, other long-term investments and
trade and other receivables.
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

(i)  Exposure to credit risk

Form B 09 - DN

The carrying amount of financial assets and amount of guarantee issued represents the maximum credit
exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk faced by the Group and the Company at the balance sheet date

was as follows:

Note Group Company
Carrying amounts Carrying amounts

31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Cash in banks and cash equivalents (i) 3,381,758,920  4,728,409,717 870,152,158 1,547,787,887
Short-term investments (i) 1,772,500,000 802,000,000 1,413,000,000 326,200,000
Accounts receivable — short-term  (7ii) 274,449,842  2,481,263,235 4,240,037,335 3,416,311,435
Accounts receivable — long-term (iii)  5,470,161,109  2,260,161,506  5,461,835,331 2,260,161,506
Other long-term investments (i) 365,500,000 - 234,500,000 -
Guarantees issued (iv) - - 170,654,454 175,537,051

12,390,179,278

7,725,997,879

11,264,369,871 10,271,834,458

(i) Cash in banks and cash equivalents, short-term investments and other long-term investments

Cash in banks and cash equivalents, short-term investments and other long-term investments of the Company
and the Group are mainly held with well-known financial institutions. Management does not foresee any
significant credit risks from these deposits and does not expect that these financial institutions may default and

cause losses to the Company and the Group.

(iii) Accounts receivable short-term and long-term

Accounts receivable short-term and long-term of the Group and the Company includes trade receivables, loans
and related interest income receivables from related companies, dividends receivable and accrued interest
receivables from term deposits at banks.

The Group and the Company’s exposure to credit risk in relation to receivables are influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. In response to the risk, the Group and the Company generally
transact with customers on cash on delivery terms. For instances where customers are granted credit terms,
management has established a credit policy under which each customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before credit terms are offered.

The Group and the Company’s exposure to credit risk in relation to loans and related interest income
receivables from related companies and dividends receivable is considered as minimal as the Group and the
Company’s historical experience in the collection of these receivables falls within acceptable timeframes.
Management believes that those receivables are of high credit quality.

The Group and the Company’s exposure to credit risk in relation to accrued interest receivables from term
deposits is considered as minimal because term deposits of the Group and the Company are placed with well-
known banks and financial institutions. The Group and the Company do not expect any loss arising from the
non-performance of these banks and financial institutions.
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(iv)

(b)

Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN

The Group establishes allowance for doubtful debt that represents its estimate of incurred losses in
respect of trade and other receivables.

The Group and the Company believe that, apart from the amount provided for below, no further
allowance for doubtful debts is necessary in respect of the outstanding trade and other receivables as of
31 December 2012. The ageing analysis of the receivables prior to allowance is as follows:

Group Company

31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
Not past due 5,717,991,132  4,681,999,851  9,690,399,328 5,658,386,185
Past due 0 — 30 days 18,762,683 47,353,593 10,898,417 17,461,049
Past due 31 — 180 days 3,433,539 11,245,365 574,921 6,994
Past due 181 — 365 days 1,894,220 361,905 - 251,855
Past due > 365 days 2,907,145 1,547,843 - 1,191,695

5,744,988,719  4,742,508,557  9,701,872,666  5,677,297,778

Guarantees

Financial guarantees were issued by the Company to banks for loans granted to the Company’s
subsidiaries including Viet Tien Food Technology One Member Company Limited, Ma San HD One
Member Company Limited and Minh Viet Packaging One Member Company Limited.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group and the Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group
and the Company’s reputation.

Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted.
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
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The financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments have the following contractual maturities
including the estimated interest payments:

Group

31 December 2012
Short-term borrowings
Accounts payable — trade
Payables to employees
Accrued expenses

Other short-term payables
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term borrowings

31 December 2011
Short-term borrowings
Accounts payable — trade
Payables to employees
Accrued expenses

Other short-term payables
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term borrowings

Carrying Contractual Within 1

amount cash flows year 1 -2 years 2 —5years Over 5 years

VND’000 VYND'000 VYND’000 VND’000 VYND’000 VND’000
1,540,393,217  (1,568,133,388) (1,568,133,388) - - -
505,190,383 (505,190,383)  (505,190,383) - - -
11,965,824 (11,965,824)  (11,965,824) ‘ . z
394,648,118 (394.648,118)  (394,648,118) - - -
3,659,086 (3,659,086) (3,659,086) - - -
14,582,966 (14,582,966) - (14,582,966) - -
2,664,997,057  (3,295,406,437) (525,464,454) (2,676,777,810) (93,164,173) -
5,135,436,651  (5,793,586,202) (3,009,061,253) (2,691,360,776) (93,164,173) -

Carrying Contractual Within 1

amount cash flows year 1 -2 years 2 — S years Over 5 years

VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VYND’000 VND’000 VND’000
1,298,728,337  (1,350,856,536) (1,350,856,536) - - -
360,346,998 (360,346,998)  (360,346,998) - - -
5,810,189 (5,810,189) (5,810,189) - - -
356,982,285 (356,982,285) (356,982,285) - - -
24,598,656 (24,598,656)  (24,598,656) - - -
3,965,976 (3,965,976) - (3,965,976) -

2,679,726,326

(3,569,063,756)

(359,726,118)

(497.312,339) (2,712,025,299)

4,730,158,767

(5,671,624,396)

(2,458,320,782)

(497,312,339) (2.715,991,275)
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
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Carrying Contractual Within 1 Over 5
Company amount cash flows year 1 -2 years 2 —Syears years
VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000 VND’000
31 December 2012
Short-term borrowings 758,686,221 (775,371,093)  (775,371,093) - - -
Accounts payable — trade 2,317,038,316  (2,317,038,316) (2,317,038,316) - - -
Payables to employees 10,825 (10,825) (10,825) - - -
Accrued expenses 106,541,318 (106,541,318) (106,541,318) - - -
Other short-term payables 167,709 (167,709) (167,709) - - -
Other long-term liabilities 14,582,966 (14,582,966) - (14,582,966) - -
3,197,027,355  (3,213,712,227) (3,199,129,261) (14,582,966) - -
Carrying Contractual Within 1 Over 5
amount cash flows year 1 -2 years 2 -5 years years
VYND’000 VYND’000 VND’000 VND'000 VND’000 VND’000
31 December 2011
Short-term borrowings 689,769,290 (714,834,552) (714,834,552) - - -
Accounts payable — trade 308,277,667 (308,277,667)  (308,277,667) - - -
Payables to employees 38,423 (38,423) (38,423) - - -
Accrued expenses 124,245,773 (124,245,773)  (124,245,773) - - -
Other short-term payables 453,173 (453,173) (453,173) - - -
Other long-term liabilities 3,965,976 (3,965,976) - - (3,965,976) -
1,126,750,302  (1,151,815,564) (1,147,849,588) - (3,965,976) -

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will
affect the Group and the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are

denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of Group entities which 1s VND. The
currencies in which these transactions primarily are denominated is the United States dollar (USD) and Euro
(EUR).

In respect of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group and the

Company’s policy is to ensure that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
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At the reporting date, the Group and the Company had the following net exposed (liability)/asset positions:

31/12/2012

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable — trade
Other receivables — short-term
Other receivables — long-term
Accounts payable — trade
Accrued expenses

Other long-term liabilities
Long-term borrowings

31/12/2011

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable — trade
Other receivables — short-term
Other receivables — long-term
Short-term borrowings
Accounts payable — trade
Accrued expenses

Other long-term liabilities
Long-term borrowings

Group Company

EUR USD USD
4,947 101,103,070 298,054
- 1,021,407 =
- 8,391 -
- 23,192,630 23,192,630
(568,090) (1,204,0606) (414,220)
- (3,785,002) -
- (700,848) (700,848)
- (108,000,000) -
(563,143) 11,635,582 22,375,616

Group Company

EUR USD USD
1,284,391 100,776,208 196,738
1,392,000 720,637 83,326
- 43,679 -
- 6,036,164 6,036,164
2 (73,755) =
(1,093,544) (899,262) (839)
= (189,543) -
- (190,416) (190,416)
- (108,000,000) -
1,582,847 (1,776,288) 6,124,973

The followings were the significant exchange rates applied by the Group and the Company as at 31

Pecember-2042-and-201-1
Company
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
VND VND VND
USD 1 20,828 20,800 20,828
EUR 1 27,700 N/A N/A
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Ma San Consumer Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
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Below is an analysis of the possible impact on the net profit after tax of the Group and the Company as

at 31 December 2012 after taking into account the current level of exchange rates and the historical
volatility as well as market expectations as at 31 December 2012.

Group Company
Effect to net profit after tax
as at
VND’000 VYND’000
31/12/2012
USD (1% strengthening) — increase in net profit after tax 2,077,985 3,490,596
EUR (1% strengthening) — decrease in net profit after tax (132,473) -
1,945,512 3,490,596
31/12/2011
USD (10% strengthening) — increase in net profit after tax 15,778,608 9,567,820
EUR (10% strengthening) — increase in net profit after tax 3,825,026 -
19,603,634 9,567,820

In 2011, The Group entered into a forward exchange contracl (o manage its loreign exchange risk. In
which the notional principal was for USD10.46 million and matures in one year.

The opposite movement of the currencies would have the equal but opposite effect to the net profit after
tax of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.
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Interest rate risk

The Group does not have any policy in place pertaining to the mitigation of any potential volatility of the

interest rate.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was as

follows:

Fixed rate instruments

Cash equivalents

Short-term investments

Other long-term investments
Loans to the parent company —
short-term

Loans to the parent company —
long-term

Loans to subsidiaries
Short-term borrowings

Variable rate instruments
Cash in banks

Short-term borrowings
Long-term borrowings

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Group

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

VYND’000 VYND’000
3,314,732,981 4,676,424,431
1,772,500,000 802,000,000
365,500,000 -
- 2,000,000,000
4,000,000,000 2,000,000,000

(358,883,532)

Company

31/12/2012
VND’000

853,500,000
1,413,000,000
234,500,000

4,000,000,000
2,028,000,000

31/12/2011
VND’000

1,529,200,000
326,200,000

2,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

9,452,732,981

9,119,540,899

8,529,000,000

5,855,400,000

67,025,939
(1,540,393,217)
(2,664,997,057)

51,985,286
(939,844,805)
(2,679,726,326)

16,652,158
(758,686,221)

18,587,887
(689,769,290)

(4,138,364,335)

(3,567,585,845)

(742,034,063)

(671,181,403)

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates would have decreased the net profit after tax of the Group
and the Company by VND25,702 million and VND452 million, respectively.
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Fair value

The Group and the Company have not determined fair values of financial instruments for disclosure in
accordance with Article 28 of Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC dated 6 November 2009 of the Ministry
of Finance because (i) quoted prices in active market are not available for these financial liabilities; and
(ii) Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the Vietnamese Accounting System do not provide guidance
on measurement of fair values in the case where quoted prices in active market are not available. Fair
values of these financial instruments may be different from their carrying values.

Subsequent events

On 25 January 2013, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts through its fund named KKR Ma San Aggregator L.P.
subscribed for new shares issued by the Company equivalent to 4.348% of its outstanding shares after
such issuance for USD109 million, subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement.

On | February 2013, the Company announced that it has entered into an agreement to purchase 24.9%
of the bottled beverage company, Vinh Hao Mineral Joint Stock Company (“Vinh Hao”) from an
existing shareholder of Vinh Hao for cash of VND85,000 per share. On 27 March 2013, the
Company’s effective interest in Vinh Hao increased from 24.9% to 63.51% as a result of further
acquisition 38.61% of Vinh Hao from other sharcholders at a price of VND85,000 per share.
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